

Examiners' Report June 2022

GCSE Religious Studies A 1RA0 2F



Edexcel and BTEC Qualifications

Edexcel and BTEC qualifications come from Pearson, the UK's largest awarding body. We provide a wide range of qualifications including academic, vocational, occupational and specific programmes for employers. For further information visit our qualifications websites at www.edexcel.com or www.btec.co.uk.

Alternatively, you can get in touch with us using the details on our contact us page at www.edexcel.com/contactus.



Giving you insight to inform next steps

ResultsPlus is Pearson's free online service giving instant and detailed analysis of your students' exam results.

- See students' scores for every exam question.
- Understand how your students' performance compares with class and national averages.
- Identify potential topics, skills and types of question where students may need to develop their learning further.

For more information on ResultsPlus, or to log in, visit www.edexcel.com/resultsplus. Your exams officer will be able to set up your ResultsPlus account in minutes via Edexcel Online.

Pearson: helping people progress, everywhere

Pearson aspires to be the world's leading learning company. Our aim is to help everyone progress in their lives through education. We believe in every kind of learning, for all kinds of people, wherever they are in the world. We've been involved in education for over 150 years, and by working across 70 countries, in 100 languages, we have built an international reputation for our commitment to high standards and raising achievement through innovation in education. Find out more about how we can help you and your students at: www.pearson.com/uk.

June 2022

Publications Code 1RA0_2F_2206_ER

All the material in this publication is copyright

© Pearson Education Ltd 2022

Introduction

Option 2F - Judaism

This paper contributes to 25% of the overall award.

The paper includes two questions: each covers a section of the specification and candidates are expected to answer both questions. There is no element of choice on the paper.

The details of the assessment content are provided in the specification. Centres are expected to use the Edexcel specification, rather than other published resources, when planning and teaching the course content. The examination is set from the specification.

This paper allows an in-depth study of Judaism as a lived religion within the United Kingdom, and its beliefs and teachings and practices. This unit engages the interest of young people because it addresses many Jewish beliefs and teachings.

It is really encouraging to see candidates approach Jewish beliefs such as Shekhinah and the mitzvot with depth and understanding.

Please note: Some questions include assessment of Spelling, Punctuation and Grammar (SPaG).

Question 1 (a)

Candidates were assessed on Section One: Jewish Beliefs

Bullet point 1.2

The question asked was 'Outline **three** beliefs about Shekhinah'

Most of the candidates understood the term 'Shekhinah' and answered it in a variety of ways. Some wrote about times in the Tenakh where Shekhinah is seen, and others wrote about Shekhinah being present when praying in a minyan.

Some candidates confused Shekhinah with the Messiah.

(a) Outline three beliefs about Shekhinah.

one beliefof the Shekhinah is that God was present through wind when Moses outed the Sea. Moses ported the Sea. A second belief of the Shekinah is that God waspresent through the burning bush.
When speaking to Moses. When speaking to Moses.

A third belief of the Shekingh is that God was present through the colourn of fire when preventing the Egyptions getting to the Jews when exaping.



Shekhinah was present:

- when Moses parted the Red Sea (1)
- in the Burning Bush (1)
- the column of fire (1)

Total: 3 Marks



Lists gain a maximum of 1 mark

Write three sentences for 3 marks

1 (a) Outline three beliefs about Shekhinah.

One belief about Shekinah is that Jews believe it is Gods

divine prescence and can be studied through

Various ways such as through study in the Yester

Another belief is that they can learn about Gods

divine prescene through worship and how it can

be seen during the exodus event.

A final belief is that they can experience God divine

plescene through place either public or private



The Divine Presence can be found in:

- study (1)
- worship (1)
- prayer (1)

Total: 3 Marks

Question 1 (b)

Candidates were assessed on Section One: Jewish Beliefs

Bullet point 1.6

The question asked was:

Explain **two** ways Pikuach Nefesh is used by Jews in their everyday life.

Candidates are asked to 'Explain two' on (b) items. Therefore, two ways are required, and both need to be developed to be awarded 4 marks.

Development consists of a piece of extra information, a reference to a source of wisdom, a quotation, or examples. The development must be of the way given and to the question asked.

A significant number of candidates confused Pikuach Nefesh with the wider concept of the sanctity of life. This limited the marks of those candidates.

Many understood the primacy of life, however, and there were some excellent answers that wrote about Shabbat laws, and about transplant surgery.

(b) Explain two ways Pikuach Nefesh is used by Jews in their everyday life.

(4)

- one way pikuas	4 Nepech is	used in	their everylay
lice is Jews	nave a Mora	duty to	preserva lipe
ahonour (e.g trac	splant Surgery)	
V	00		
-Another way pix	each Nepesh i	s used by	sews in their
every day tige is	Jews collow	the Talmud	which states:
" selection is upon save			
- 1/		V	/
entise nation" This			
Sameone's like is			
it goes against	the 10 como	2trambo	



Marks are awarded for:

- Jews have a moral duty to preserve life (1)
- so if they can prevent someone dying it is seen as a honour (1)

The second point is upside-down:

- the way is breaking the mitzvot to save a life (1)
- developed by the quote from the Talmud (1)

Total: 4 Marks



Separate the two points into paragraphs: this it makes it easier to mark

(b) Explain two ways Pikuach Nefesh is used by Jews in their everyday life.

Pikuach Nefesh is used by sous in every day life through the sancity of life which is the appriciation or wood giving life which is a sacred ming. Jours use pikuach Nefash when becking laws to do thiss such as save use a rice 'saving the rice of one is saving the life or a cation.

(4)



This is an example where the candidate does not understand the difference between the sanctity of life and Pikuach Nefesh.

The marks here are given for:

- the second point, regarding breaking Jewish laws to save a life (1)
- developed by the reference to the source of wisdom and authority (1)

Total: 2 Marks

Question 1 (c)

Candidates were assessed on Section One: Jewish Beliefs

Bullet point 1.7

The question asked was:

Explain **two** reasons why the mitzvot are important for Jews.

Candidates are asked to 'Explain **two**' on (c) items. Therefore, two reasons were required, and both needed to be developed, for 4 marks.

Development consists of a piece of extra information, a reference to a source of wisdom, a quotation, or examples. The development must relate to the reason given and to the question asked.

The reasons then should be supported with a 'reference to a source of wisdom', this must support the reason given and cannot be awarded twice. Therefore, if it is used as development it does not gain a second mark for the source.

Most candidates understood this question and responded well. Where candidates lost marks, it was often due to repetition.

GENERIC advice for centres to what constitutes a source of wisdom

- The candidates do not have to reference a quote or quote it word for word.
- If examiners are unsure they will use a search engine. Enter the gist of the paraphrase and 'Tenakh' or 'Jewish teaching'.
- If the candidate states that it is in Genesis 1:18 and then states another verse from Genesis then this can be awarded. We are not holding candidate to 'verses' but it must be the correct
- If the candidate gives the paraphrase and then puts (Genesis 1:18) in brackets the paraphrase can have the mark and the bracketed reference is ignored.
- If a candidate quotes Moses and it was Abraham or vice versa it is not awarded.

(c) Explain **two** reasons why the mitzvot are important for Jews.

In your answer you must refer to a source of wisdom and authority.

(5)

One reason why the mitzuot are important for Jews is because they are the 613 Jewish laws that God had set at to the jews beaute put these in place because it teaches them how to live a good life and lead by example in order to refrain from sin, for example do lare thy reighbour as I have loved you", these are all pet in place to ensure a happy and healthy Jewish we and community:

A second reason why see mitzuck are important for Tems is are way to correct jour with God and re-bild or perhaps build a stronger relationship with God and strengthes in their faith.



Marks are given for:

- they are the 613 laws (1)
- it teaches them how to live a good life (1)
- for example do not kill (1)
- they connect with God (1)
- and strengthen faith (1)

Total: 5 Marks

(c) Explain two reasons why the mitzvot are important for Jews.

In your answer you must refer to a source of wisdom and authority.

The 613 Mitrot to all important his trust to



Marks are given for:

- they are a set of positive and negative laws (1)
- which tests obedience (1)
- they outline God's demands (1)
- to guide us how to live (1)

This candidate has not given a source of wisdom and authority and so does not receive the fifth mark.

Total: 4 Marks



Learn the sources of wisdom and be able to use them accurately and in context

Question 1 (d)

The focus of the marking changes from AO1 to AO2 on the (d) items.

The candidates were assessed on AO2: Analyse and evaluate aspects of religion and belief, including their significance and influence.

AO2 constitutes 50% of the overall mark.

The question is 'Evaluate' this statement considering the arguments for and against and reach a justified conclusion.

There must some consideration of the validity of the arguments used/appraisal, to gain the higher grades.

Many candidates produced excellent answers, giving reasons for and against but did not evaluate the credibility of the argument. Formulas and writing frames restricted the flow of the arguments, limiting candidates' progression to the higher levels.

(d) items are marked using a levels-based mark scheme.

Candidates were assessed on Section One: Jewish Beliefs

Bullet point 1.3

The question asked:

'Belief in the Messiah is important for Jews.'

Evaluate this statement considering arguments for and against.

In your response you should:

- refer to Jewish teachings
- reach a justified conclusion

Please note: neither in the bullet point, nor in the question, are candidates required to give a non-religious response.

*(d) "Belief in the Messiah is important for Jews."

Evaluate this statement considering arguments for and against.

In your response you should:

- · refer to Jewish teachings
- · refer to different Jewish points of view
- · reach a justified conclusion.

(15)will belief in

and that belies in the Messiah should be carried out through the community giving glace, love and advice to those about is and how Jews bring about a gleat faith. However, this could be interpreted as a fairly Went argument as God said there would be a Messiah and who are Jeus to grestion that? Jews are the Chosen people of God and should recognise that the word of God is infallible and should be respected.

You could also say about this argument, that by a combined belief in a singular Messiah we Can play and hope for someone to castly out Gods work on each and be a representative of the Jaws as a symbol of Jewish identify It can bring is closer and more connected to God More spiritually

To conclude, it is important in my opinion as having a strongledes to look up to can Show Dews how to live their lines and is a way for them to test ones obedience.



This response is at the lower end of Level 3. It comprises only knowledge and understanding, until page two.

Here, it appraises the previous argument, with the point that it is a weak argument because God has said there will be a Messiah and who are Jews to question that. This places the response into Level 3.

It does not achieve a higher level, however, because the religious reasoning is not in depth and the conclusion is not strong.

Level 3:

7 marks

3 marks for SPaG

Total: 10 Marks



Take opportunities to assess and analyse the validity of the evidence supporting the statement

*(d) "Belief in the Messiah is important for Jews."

Evaluate this statement considering arguments for and against.

In your response you should:

- refer to Jewish teachings
- refer to different Jewish points of view
- reach a justified conclusion.

with the Statement " Belief in the Messiah is important for Jews" as Dews don't see Jesus was not written he eventually disobered Good) St David's gaminy line, or anyone who God Fens believe messiah oints: Some qualities Military political gollow the 10 commandments. However some people May disagree and argue that Regorned Such thing Jews don't believe there is believe everyones collective actions come together Hebrews not just one individual. In contrast to this, Orthodox Sews have a juxtay-sed the regarded sews Orthodox Seus believe that generation, there will appoint someone to rule with kindness. This

(15)

wesiah will lead the Jews to the New Jeruslem, and this is The belief that beeps the Orthodox Sews maining and preparing to we know him in In Conclusion, I agree with the Statement i Bolieg in the messiah is important for seus! as in early generation, orthodox source believe there is the potential to be a Mossiah.



This candidate argues 'for and against', with depth of knowledge. However, they do not appraise or evaluate the arguments used and therefore the response does not reach Level 3.

Level 2

6 marks

3 marks for SPaG

Total: 9 Marks

Question 2 (a)

Candidates were assessed on Section Two: Jewish practices

Bullet point 2.2

The question asked was:

Outline **three** parts of the Tenakh.

The candidates needed to provide any part of the Tenakh. The most common answers were the Torah, Nevi'im and Ketuvim, although some candidates wrote the names of books, and some the Decalogue. All of these were credited.

Candidates should learn correct spellings – as well as enabling examiners to mark more easily, it is a specification requirement.

2 (a) Outline three parts of the Tenakh.

(3)

One port of the Tenakh is the Torah

Ascord part of the Fach Tenakh is the Nev'in Athird port of the Tenach is the ketruvin.



Marks are awarded for the:

- Torah (1)
- Nevi'im (1)
- Ketuvim (1)

Total: 3 Marks



Spell key words correctly

2 (a) Outline three parts of the Tenakh.

One part of the Tenakh is the Torch which is
the word of God and contains 5 books to be
lead each year and kept inside an Arm.
Another part of the Tenakh is the Neviim which
contains is a history book containing 8 books.
A final part of the Tenakh is the Returning
which contains 11 books and is vied by
Jews to lead poetry, stories and seek spiritual



Marks are awarded for the:

- Torah (1)
- Nevi'im (1)
- Ketuvim (1)

This candidate has used many more words than is necessary to receive the marks.

Total: 3 Marks



Write simple sentences for (a) questions

Question 2 (b)

Candidates were assessed on Section Two: Jewish practices

Bullet point 2.3

The question asked was:

Explain **two** features of Jewish prayer in the home.

Candidates are asked to 'Explain **two'** on (b) items. Therefore, two features are required, and both need to be developed to be awarded 4 marks.

Development consists of a piece of extra information, a reference to a source of wisdom, a quotation or examples. The development must be of the feature given and to the question asked.

This was generally answered well. The word 'feature' was interpreted widely and included names of prayers as well as prayer objects such as Tefillin. Typically, candidates lost marks where they had written about prayer in general, rather than in the home.

This is a very generic answer but nonetheless, it receives the marks.

Candidates should write an answer that divides into two paragraphs, each containing a reason and a development.

(b) Explain two features of Jewish prayer in the home.

(4) the home is that it one to God. Some Jews belie Luth God

Jeaure of Jewish prayer in the home & lews can take about anything to can forque un a private obody else has to hear your



Marks are awarded for:

- It can be one to one with God (1)
- helping to form a deeper connection (1)
- He can talk about anything (1)
- as nobody can hear you (1)

Total: 4 Marks



Set out your answer so that the two paragraphs are clear

(b) Explain two features of Jewish prayer in the home.



Marks are awarded for:

- Shabbat (1)
- consists of prayer at home (1)
- Morning, midday and evening prayers (1)
- ask God for forgiveness (1)

There is much information here. The points were given at these words but could have been given in other places.

Total: 4 Marks



A source of wisdom can be accepted as a development of a reason

Question 2 (c)

Candidates were assessed on Section Two: Jewish practices

Bullet point 2.8

The question asked was:

Explain **two** ways that synagogues are used by Jewish communities.

Candidates needed to answer giving ways they are used, not reasons why they are used.

Candidates are asked to 'Explain **two'** on (c) items. Therefore, two ways are required, and both need to be developed to be awarded 4 marks. They must also correctly use a source of wisdom in their answer which must be identifiable, relevant and linked to the way given in the answer.

This question was generally answered well, although candidates found it difficult to add a source of wisdom and authority.

Candidates must be prepared for the whole breadth and depth of the specification, in order to achieve higher grades.

It is best to check that materials used in school cover the specification.

(c) Explain two ways that synagogues are used by Jewish communities. In your answer you must refer to a source of wisdom and authority.

(5)

one way the synagogue is used by jewish Families is it can be used during festivals such as yamki ppur, Roshlashanah, pesach, SUKKOK, They can pray to God and ask for for a weness.

Another way the synagoque is used by Jewish communities is for Bar/Bat mitzuans. This is when the son and daugnter become responsible for Following the command ments themselves



Marks are awarded for:

- Used during festivals (1)
- such as Yom Kippur (1)
- For Bar Mitzvah (1)
- when the son becomes responsible for following the commandments (1)

Total: 4 Marks

The source must be relevant and used as part of the candidate's reasoning.

(c) Explain two ways that synagogues are used by Jewish communities.

In your answer you must refer to a source of wisdom and authority.

(5)	
One way that Synagogues are used	
by Jewish communifies is for publi	
prayer Jews can pray in a minya	N
(10 people) as see Good wanted Jews	
to participate in public prayer, as	
Secret Seen in psalm 116: "in the	
presence of his entire people".	**********
Another way that synagogues	********
are used by Jewish communities	3
is for flower shoubbat from friday	
sunset to saturday sunset 420	
The Jews welcome it in like a	
bride, and all pray together	
aswell as worship the God.	1444444-



Marks are awarded for:

- for public prayer (1)
- Jews can pray in a minyan (1)
- 'in the presence of his people ' (1)
- for Shabbat (1)
- all pray together (1)

Total: 5 Marks

Question 2 (d)

The focus of the marking is AO2 on the (d) items. As explained in the specification this means:

Analyse and evaluate aspects of religion and belief, including their significance and influence.

AO2 constitutes 50% of the overall mark.

The question asks candidates to 'Evaluate' this statement considering the arguments for and against and reach a justified conclusion. There must some consideration of the validity of the arguments used/appraisal to gain the higher grades.

Many candidates produced excellent answers giving reasons for and against but did not evaluate the credibility of the argument. Formulas and writing frames restricted the flow of the arguments limiting candidates' progression to the higher levels.

(d) items are marked using a levels-based mark scheme.

Candidates were assessed on Section Two: Jewish practices

Bullet point 2.5

The question asked was:

'Marriage is the most important Jewish ritual.'

Evaluate this statement considering arguments for and against.

In your response you should:

- refer to Jewish teachings
- reach a justified conclusion.

Please note that candidates were not required to give a non-religious response.

The statement was designed to evaluate different understandings about marriage and whether it is more important than other rituals. The best answers compared it with Brit Milah, Bar and Bat Mitzvah and funeral rituals. Some candidates, however, did not understand the word 'ritual' and compared marriage to festivals, which limited their marks.

There are many different ways to answer (d) items and gain marks, however, a 'template' will not assure high marks.

- Funeral - birther (d) "Marriage is the most important Jewish ritual." Evaluate this statement considering arguments for and against.

In your response you should:

- refer to Jewish teachings
- reach a justified conclusion.

(12)I agree to a certain extent with this statement. Morringe I the most important Joursh ritual because it pairs a couple with each other gover therefore it can be colebrated because it highlight the growth of the religion in compartion to the times of slaves. Another reason who some Jews will agree with murispe belog the nost important Jewsh strail 3 because through marine comes obstation, who will eventually be Jewith therefore it can be celebrated In terms of collectiveness, Jeus con establish a fairly that worships God, Loady them left God Wito blessing In critique of this opinion, the children Ican the itsul of marine may not your up to be Jewih, this defects the point

On the other hand, some night song the Funeral ritual is the most important ritual because it Celebrates the gull like of the person and how they will be with good this promotes weekly and buildry a realitardip with God, to ensure you do not go to hell. A Fixturas croter reason some rous night Dagree with the statement is because the circumsters Estual I nove Important it colobrates Abrahans devotion to God by circumstation and offer God he son. This promotes devotion to God. In conclusion, I believe that marine is the most important Jewith citual because it celebrates life to come such as children and bounts en Sently places Cod.



This candidate gives reasons why marriage is important, followed by reasons why funerals are important, followed by reasons why circumcision is important.

Their knowledge and understanding is there but they do not explain why marriage (or any of the other rituals mentioned) is more important than the others.

There is no appraisal nor evaluation, therefore the response cannot reach Level 3.

Level 2

Total: 6 marks



There are many different ways to answer d) items and gain marks; a template will not assure good marks.

Candidates not try to use short points for (d) answers, which need to be written in prose.

The Boto Bar or Bat Mitzvah could be more important than marriage, as this ritual marks the day when a Tenish child becomes responsible for their own sins and takes on the great responsibility of following God's Laws independently. This ritual is incredibly important for the development of a person's faith and is therefore more important than marriage.

Secondly, the Jewish funeal rife could be more important that Brit Milah & smore could be a more important Jewish rihal than marriage because it is when a baby boy receives recieves his name and is circumcised to represent the Covenant between God and Abraham. This rihal is so important to the continuation of this some covenant that a chair is set aside for the Prophet Elijah so he can aversee the procedure, making Brit Milah More important than marriage.

These arguments are strong because they are supported by

Some may disagree with me though, as marriage allows a Jewish couple to fulfil the command in Genesis to be fruitful and multiply, so marriage helps people to follow God's Laws and pass on their faith to their children.

Some may also disagree with me locause part of marriage is the trusition, or between which has legal status in Judaism and outlines important aspects of life in marriage depending on whether the rouple is Orthodox or Reformed, such as support for the wife ip and thildren in the event of the misoand's death and promises related to faith.

These arguments are weak though, as of many other Milals in the Jewish faith have legal status, including Boit Milah, and all help to Jews to follow God's laws, making marriage no more important.

In conclusion, Marriage is not the most important
Tewish ritual because it I other rituals such as
Bar Mitzvalh and Brit Milath hold more importance for
a person's personal development in faith and hold
legal status just as much as Jewish marriage.



This candidate opens with a judgment and says why they believe Bar Mitzvah is more important than marriage.

Many of the points they make do not really explain why one ritual is more important than another, however, until the second page. Here, they point out that other rituals also have legal status within the religion.

Their conclusion is good, making the point that Bar Mitzvah and Brit Milah hold more importance for a person's personal development.

Although there is some appraisal, it is brief. Generally, the candidate gives only reasons.

Level 3

Total: 7 Marks

Paper Summary

Based on their performance on this paper, candidates are offered the following advice:

- Do not attach extra sheets to your examination paper: write within the scannable pages, using the blank spaces if necessary
- When answering the (a) items use three separate, full sentences
- The source of wisdom offered to support answers in (c) items must be relevant to the question and support the reason given
- The (d) items ask for evaluation, after considering the evidence
- Higher marks are achieved if the evidence/reasons given is/are 'considered' or appraised for their value as an argument as part of deciding the evaluation
- On (d) items, the bullet points indicate the viewpoints that will be credited in the answer
- Candidates should read the questions carefully, and answer the question asked, fully

Grade boundaries

Grade boundaries for this, and all other papers, can be found on the website on this link:

https://qualifications.pearson.com/en/support/support-topics/results-certification/grade-boundaries.html

